
From: CARMEL KELLY on behalf of planning mailbox
To: MARTINA PARKE (PLANNING)
Subject: FW: Section 5 Exemption Certificate Application
Date: 11 July 2025 12:22:44
Attachments: 2601_Site Location Map.pdf

2602_Site Layout.pdf
2603_Existing Plans Elevations & Section.pdf
2604_Home Office Plans.pdf
Section 5 Application.pdf

 
 

From: John <John@johnmccayarchitect.ie> 
Sent: 11 July 2025 12:05
To: planning mailbox <Planning@Donegalcoco.ie>
Cc: RYAN NOLAN <ryannolan@Donegalcoco.ie>
Subject: Section 5 Exemption Certificate Application

 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Donegal County
Council. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognise the sender and are sure that the content is safe.

Dear Sir / Madam
 
Please find attached the following application form and supporting documentation
for Section 5 Exemption Certificate applicaiton -  
 
 

·        Section 5 Application Form
·        2601_Site Location Map
·        2602_Site Layout
·        2603_Existing Plans, Elevations & Section
·        2604_Home Office Pans, Elevations & Section

 
 

Regards

John Mc Cay RIAI (086 2678489)

 

Senior Architect

 

for

John Mc Cay Architect Limited
Cockhill Road
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E-mail:   John@johnmccayarchitct.ie 
 
Our Ref: S525/65 
 
 
10th July, 2025 
 
 
Lynn McLaughlin 
C/o John McCay Architect Ltd. 
 
 
 
Re: Section 5 - Application for development at Cockhill Road, Buncrana, Co Donegal, 

F93 HY2C. 
 
 
A Chara, 
 
 
I wish to acknowledge receipt of your application received on 11th July, 2025 in relation to 
the above. 
 
 
Yours sincerely,  
 

Martina Parke 
 
Donegal County Council 
Planning Services 
 
 
 



 

SECTION 5 REFERRAL REPORT – Ref. No:   S5 25/65 
 

1.0 BACKGROUND 
1.1 Location: 

Sharagore, Buncrana, Co. Donegal, F93 A2C4.   

1.2 Planning History: 
No record of any planning history on the subject site.  

 
1.3 Proposed Development:  

The development the subject of this Section 5 referral relates to:  

 Change of use from existing shed to home office, upgrade of existing windows, 

replacement of existing flat roof and tin roof to PVC flat roofing.  

 

1.4 Comments: 
The subject site is in the rural area of Linsfort, northwest of Buncrana. The site is 

occupied by an existing single storey dwelling with single storey sheds located to the 

side and front of the dwelling.  The entire site is in an area designed as ‘Structurally 

Weak Rural Area’ in the County Donegal Development Plan 2024 – 2030 and a High 

Scenic Amenity Area.    

 

 
 

2.0 EVALUATION  
 

In preparing the assessment for this reference, regard has been had to the following 

statutory provisions:  



 

3.0  Planning and Development Act, 2000 (as amended)  
 

Section 2(1)  

In this Act, except where the context otherwise requires – 

 

"structure" means any building, structure, excavation, or other thing constructed or 

made on, in or under any land, or any part of a structure so defined, and  

(a)  where the context so admits, includes the land on, in or under which the structure 

is situate ...  

 

"works" includes any act or operation of construction, excavation, demolition, extension, 

alteration, repair or renewal ...  

 

Section 3(1)  

"Development" in this Act means, except where the context otherwise requires, the 

carrying out of any works on, in, over or under land or the making of any material change 

in the use of any structures or other land.  

 

Section 177U(9) 

“In deciding upon a declaration for the purposes of Section 5 of this Act a planning 

authority or the Board, as the case may be, shall where appropriate, conduct screening 

for appropriate assessment in accordance with the provisions of this section”.     

 

4.0 Planning and Development Act, 2000 (as amended)  
 

           Section 4.1.(h)  

            The following shall be exempted development for the purposes of this Act – 

            Development consisting of the carrying out of works for the maintenance,  

            Improvement of alteration of any structure, being works which affect only the 

            interior of the structure or which do not materially affect the external appearance  

            of the structure so as to render the appearance inconsistent with the character of  

            the structure or of neighbouring structures.  

           Section 4.1.(j)  



The following shall be exempted development for the purposes of this Act – 

Development consisting of the use of any structure or other land within the curtilage of 

a house for any purpose incidental to the enjoyment of the house as such. 

 

 

6.0 ASSESSMENT 
 
6.1 Consideration of Proposed Development:   
Section 4(1)(h) provides that: 
 
"Development consisting of the use of any structure or other land for the purpose for which it 
was used immediately before the commencement of this Act, or for any purpose incidental to 
that use, shall be exempted development." 
 
However, a material change of use may still require permission unless it is considered not 
material or is listed as exempt under the Planning and Development Regulations 2001 (as 
amended). 
 
Planning and Development Regulations 2001 – Class 3 of Part 1, Schedule 2 
 
Class 3 provides for: 
 
"The use of any structure or other land for a purpose incidental to the enjoyment of the 
house as such." 
 
 
A shed used for domestic storage is typically considered incidental to the enjoyment of the 
dwelling. 
 
A home office may also fall under this exemption, provided: 
 
It is used by a resident of the house, 
 
It is not visited by clients/customers, and 
 
It does not involve signage, staff, or deliveries associated with a business. 
 
The change of use of the existing shed to a home office, where such use is solely for 
purposes incidental to the enjoyment of the dwelling house (e.g. private remote working by a 
resident), and does not involve clients, employees, signage, or other commercial activity, is 
considered exempted development under Section 4(1)(h) of the Planning and Development 
Act 2000 (as amended), and Class 3 of Part 1, Schedule 2 of the Planning and Development 
Regulations 2001 (as amended). 
 
Regarding the facade improvements to the building the works consist of the following.  



(i) The proposed alterations include a like for like roof replacement and the 

replacement of windows and doors on the building are all considered to be 

minor in scale and fall within the scope of section 4.1.(h) and will not alter the 

character, mass and scale of the permitted building.  

(ii) There is no significant additional loading on the capacity of the permitted 

wastewater treatment system. 

(iii) There are no third-party properties in proximity to the subject site. 

(iv) Appropriate assessment is not a consideration in the assessment of this 

referral.   

 

6.2     Conclusion: 
 
It is considered that: 

The proposed change of use from a shed to a home office and the alterations to the 

building constitute “development” within the meaning of the Act, being works, but is 

exempted development coming within the scope of section 4.1.(h) of the Planning & 

Development Regulations 2001 (as amended). 

 

It should also be noted that in determining the subject section 5 referral regard was had to 

recent Section 5 referrals to An Bord Pleanála for determination. 

 

7.0  RECOMMENDATION  
 

IT IS HEREBY RECOMMENDED THAT A DECLARATION BE MADE THAT THE SUBJECT 

MATTER OF THE REQUEST AS ABOVE -  

 

IS    Development 

& 

IS    Exempted Development 

 

WITHIN THE MEANING OF THE ABOVE ACT 

 



The proposal for: Change of use from existing shed to home office, upgrade of existing 

windows, replacement of existing flat roof and tin roof to PVC flat roofing.  

 

The Planning Authority, in considering this referral, had regard particularly to: 

(a) Sections, 2, 3, and 177U of the Planning and Development Act, 2000 (as amended) and 
section 4.1.(h) of the Planning & Development Act 2000 (as amended) and Class 3 of Part 1, 
Schedule 2 of the Planning and Development Regulations 2001 (as amended). 

 

And concluded that: 

The proposal is development and is exempted development coming within the scope of 

Section 4(1)(h) of the Planning & Development Act 2000 (as amended).  

 

 

Signed:  

Position: Executive Planner 

Date:        06/08/2025.     

 
________________________________ 
Frank Sweeney 
Senior Executive Planner  
Community Development & Planning Services 
07/08/2025 
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